

**TITLE: CHAMPION NEWS AND FINANCE REPORT**

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF POLICY, PARTNERSHIPS & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

**1. PURPOSE OF REPORT**

- 1.1 To advise the Committee on the current expenditure and balances of the Area Committee delegated budgets.
- 1.2 To bring to the Committee's attention details of recent requests received for Area Committee Development Discretionary Grant Funding made by community groups and local organisations.
- 1.3 To advise the Committee of the activities and schemes with which the Community Development Officer has been involved.
- 1.4 To bring to the Committee's attention some important community based activities that will be taking place during the next few months.

**2. FORWARD PLAN**

- 2.1 This report does not contain a recommendation on a key decision and has not been referred to in the Forward Plan.

**3. PROJECT/ACTIVITY/SCHEME DETAILS**

**3.1 2010 Village of the Year Competition**

Members will recall that the Village of the Year Working Group met in August to review the 2010 competition and discuss the options for the future of the Village of the Year Competition. As part of this process the working group agreed to take on board the SRAC's comments.

As a result the CPRE Hertfordshire Executive Administrator undertook the survey and made contact with all the PCs & PMs for their response and views on the 2010 competition.

The findings of that survey are detailed in appendix 4 for Members information.

### **3.2 2<sup>nd</sup> Networking Meeting for Parish Councils and Royston Town Council**

The second Parish Networking Meeting was held on Monday 25<sup>th</sup> October 2010 at Mrs Howard Hall, Letchworth Garden City.

The meeting was Chaired by Cllr David Reavell of Kimpton Parish Council and other Parish Council representation came from Knebworth, St Ippolyts, Ickleford, Graveley, Ashwell, Offley and St.Pauls Walden Parish.

Carina Helmn – County Officer HAPTC & Clerk to Kimpton Parish Council administered the meeting with support from Stuart Izzard Community Development Manager NHDC.

Also in attendance was Cllr Judith Watson, Chairman HAPTC & Woolmer Green Parish Council.

The group discussed the following topics:

The Comprehensive Spending Review and impact for Parish Councils.

The release of current Section 106 funds and the effective use of such planning contributions in the future.

Formally commenting on the North Herts Rural Strategy and Parish Charter.

North Herts LSP – Report from Board Representatives.

### **3.3 2010/11 Rural Grants Fund**

Members are advised that this year the Panel will be meeting during the mid / end of January 2011, and applicants will be advised of the outcome of their grant applications by the mid / end of February 2011.

### **3.4 Anti Fly-tipping Magnetic Signs**

This matter is being investigated by the Service Manager Waste & Recycling and the Head of Housing and Public Protection and is likely to be an agenda item for Project Board in December to consider.

### **3.5 North Hertfordshire Partnership Annual Community Conference - 'BIG SOCIETY IN A VIBRANT PLACE'**

The North Hertfordshire Partnership held its fourth Annual Community Conference in the Spirella Building, Letchworth Garden City on Monday evening 11th October 2010. Over 140 people representing 45 organisations attended.

The event included:

- The theme '*Big Society and the role of the Voluntary Sector in a time of financial constraints*' with key note speakers from ACEVO and the NCVO.
- Workshops to discuss the Big Society presentations
- Networking and displays from 30 organisations
- The launch of the Community Pot funding programme for Community groups.
- Consideration of the Partnership's Annual Report for 2009-2010

Councillor David Levett, Chairman of North Hertfordshire District Council, welcomed everyone to the event and announced his plan for a Community Volunteers Award scheme.

The Chairman introduced Belinda Pratten, Head of Policy for the National Council for Voluntary Organisations (NCVO) and Seb Elsworth, Director of Strategy for the Association of Chief Executives of Voluntary Organisations (ACEVO) who spoke about the challenges and opportunities for the voluntary sector and how they could respond to community needs in a time of financial restraint.

### **3.6 Herts Highways – Roger Flowerday Response to SRAC Minute 33 (9) - 30<sup>th</sup> September 2010 Meeting**

A formal response regarding road signage – Whitehorse Lane is detailed in Appendix 5

### **3.7 Highways Work Programme**

The Highways Work Programme for Southern Rural is attached as Appendix 2.

The programme details updates of all current schemes.

### **3.8 Area Committee project proposals to JMP for joint funding – Briefing Note**

The recently drafted Briefing Note for all the Area Committees is listed as a separate item on the Committee agenda.

### **3.9 Area Committee Work Programme**

The proposed Area Committee Work Programme is attached as Appendix 3

The programme details updates of on-going projects and it can itemise any projects proposed for future discussion at Committee.

## **4. FINANCE REPORT**

### **4.1 BACKGROUND**

4..2 A spreadsheet detailing the total spends to date of the Area Development Budgets is attached as Appendix 1.

4..3 The Committee agreed its programme of awards to community organisations on a meeting by meeting basis. All Parish Councils & Parish Meetings, Community & Voluntary Groups and Organisations have been advised on this process.

4..4 The Committee is asked to note the Area Committee Discretionary Base Budget for 2001/11 is £23,709, but having agreed four Memorandum Of Understandings (MOU) totalling £6,699, the current unallocated budget is £10,831.

- 4.5 The Committee is asked to note that the Member Ward Budget for 2010/11 of £700 per Member should be allocated by March 31<sup>st</sup> 2011, but will need to be allocated by the meeting of 24<sup>th</sup> March 2011, as this is the last meeting of the Council's fiscal year.
- 4.6 Where there are multi member wards, members are advised to consult with their fellow ward Councillors on any forthcoming community grant requests, to try and avoid any potential application conflicts or multiple requests.

## **5. ISSUES – PROPOSALS FOR 2009-12**

### **Council priorities**

- 5.1 All current SLA's & MoU's and subsequent grant awards should support the North Hertfordshire's district-wide Vision, the Council's Mission and the three priorities.

Town Centres  
Green Issues  
Sustainable Development

## **6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS**

- 6.1 The Terms of Reference in relation to Area Committees confirm that they may establish and maintain relationships with outside bodies/voluntary organisations which includes discretionary grant aid/financial support. However, this does not include grants for district wide activities.
- 6.2 Section 2 Local Government Act 2000 provides that the Council has power to do anything which it considers likely to promote or improve the economic, social or environmental well-being of its area. This would apply on the basis that financial assistance to voluntary and community organisations improves the economic, social or environmental well-being of the District or part of it.
- 6.3 Section 137 Local Government Act 1972 provides specific authority for the Council to incur expenditure on anything which is in the interests of and will bring direct benefit to its area. This includes a charity or other body operating for public service.
- 6.4 The Committee has delegated powers to administer funds from the budgets described.

## **7. FINANCIAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS**

- 7.1 In the past few years, given the significant carry forward for Area Committee Development budgets, there has been no inflationary allowance other than for MoU's, and the baseline for 2010/11 was the same as 2009/10.

## **8. HUMAN RESOURCE AND EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS**

- 8.1 The local MoUs are managed by the Community Development Officer as part of the regular work programme.
- 8.2 The great majority of the voluntary and community projects that are funded by the Council have equality and social inclusion as a key objective of their purpose. Such projects work very closely with and for the more disadvantaged and potentially socially excluded within our communities.
- 8.3 All activities undertaken by the Council, its committees, Community Development officers or agencies working on its behalf are to be conducted in accordance with the NHDC Corporate Equality Strategy and relevant Equalities legislation.

## **9. CONSULTATION WITH EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS AND WARD MEMBERS**

- 9.1 Consultation with Members has occurred in connection with the allocation of funds for Community Projects.
- 9.2 Consultation with the respective officers and external agencies/groups has taken place with regard to funding proposals for Area Committee Discretionary Development Funds.

## **10. ISSUES & FUNDING DECISIONS TO BE MADE**

- 10.1 Members are asked to note the information detailed in Appendix 1 spreadsheet of the report, which relates to the Area Committee budget balances for the current financial year 2010/11. All budgets will need to be allocated by 24<sup>th</sup> March 2011, as the Committee meeting is the last in the 2010/11 fiscal year where all un-allocated budgets can be allocated, or re-allocated as appropriate.
- 10.2 The spreadsheet also details the pre-allocations carried forward from the previous financial year 2009/10 including the balances and past expenditure relating to the allocated and un-allocated Area Capital Visioning Budgets available to the Committee.
- 10.3 The total budget for the Committee for 2010/11 is £30,709 including a Ward Members budget of £7,000.
- 10.4 The current unallocated discretionary base budget is £10,831.
- 10.5 The current unallocated Members Ward Discretionary Budget (MWDB) is £6,574.
- 10.6 The current unallocated Capital Visioning Budget is £15,600.

## **11. RECOMMENDATIONS**

- 11.1 The Committee is asked to note the budgetary expenditure, balances and carry forwards from the Ward Development Budgets and Visioning Budgets as set out in Appendix 1.
- 11.2 That the Committee endorses the actions taken by the Community Development Officer to promote greater community capacity and well being for rural communities.

## **12. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS**

- 12.1 To ensure that the Committee are kept informed of the work of the Community Development Officer.
- 12.2 This report is intended simply to inform Members of the financial resources available to the Committee. It draws attention to the current budgetary situation, assists in the effective financial management of the Area Committee's budget and ensures actions are performed within the Authority's Financial Regulations and the guidance in the Grants procedure.
- 12.3 The allocation of funds will improve the services provided by the local organisations and groups that are available and accessed by various members of the community.

## **13. APPENDICES**

- 13.1 Appendix 1 – Budget expenditure, balances, and carry forwards from the Ward Development Budgets and the allocated Visioning Budgets.
- 13.2 Appendix 2 – Highways Work Programme.
- 13.3 Appendix 3 – Area Committee Work Plan.
- 13.4 Appendix 4 – Village of the Year Survey.
- 13.5 Appendix 5 – Highways response re Whitehorse Lane.

## **14. CONTACT OFFICERS**

- 14.1 Garry Gover (Community Development Officer – Southern Rural Area)  
Telephone: 01462 474674  
E-Mail: [garry.gover@north-herts.gov.uk](mailto:garry.gover@north-herts.gov.uk)
- 14.3 Stuart Izzard (Community Development Manager)  
Telephone 01462 474854  
Email [stuart.izzard@north-herts.gov.uk](mailto:stuart.izzard@north-herts.gov.uk)
- 14.4 Lois Stewart (Group Accountant – Customer Services)  
Telephone: 01462 474566  
Email: [lois.stewart@north-herts.gov.uk](mailto:lois.stewart@north-herts.gov.uk)

**15. BACKGROUND PAPERS**

- 15.1 Review of Policies and Procedures for Financial Assistance to Voluntary and Community Organisations, November 2002.
- 15.2 Community Governance Reviews – Full Council Meeting 25<sup>th</sup> February 2010.

**- THIS PAGE IS BLANK -**